
Meeting of:  Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Monday, 17th December, 2018
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside - Number One 
Riverside

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5.  MINUTES 3 - 7

To consider the Minutes of Audit and Governance Committee meeting 
held on Tuesday 2nd October 2018.

6.  EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2018 8 - 15

For the Committee to consider the External Audit Progress Report.

7.  EXTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY MEMORANDUM 2018-2019 16 - 34

External Audit will present to the Committee the External Audit 
Strategy Memorandum 2018-2019.

Public Document Pack



8.  INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 2 REPORT 2018/19 35 - 53

For the Committee to receive an update from Internal Audit for Quarter 
2, 2018/2019.

9.  AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS - 
SELF-ASSESSMENT 

54 - 67

Members are asked to consider an Audit and Governance Committee 
self-assessment report.

10.  PROPOSAL TO RECRUIT AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER ON AUDIT 
AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

68 - 72

The Committee will consider a proposal to recruit an Independent 
Member on to the Audit and Governance Committee.

11.  RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q2 2018/19 73 - 86

The Council’s Risk Manager will provide Members with a report on the 
Quarter 2 Risk Management data for 2018/2019.

12.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information. 

13.  BACK O'TH MOSS COMMUNITY CENTRE 87 - 90

For the Committee to receive a report on the Back O'th Moss 
Community Centre.

Audit and Governance Committee Members
Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Patricia Mary Dale
Councillor James Gartside Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Peter Malcolm Councillor Donna Martin E
Councillor Kathleen Nickson Councillor Aasim Rashid
Ann Taylor Andrew Underdown
Councillor Shah Wazir

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
John Addison

john.addison@Rochdale.Gov.UK



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 2nd October 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Malcolm (in the Chair); Councillors Ali Ahmed, Dale, 
Gartside, Hussain, Martin, Nickson and Wazir; Mrs A. Taylor (Advisory 
Member)

OFFICERS: E. Newsome (Head of Governance), I. Corbridge (Head of 
Internal Audit), M. Nixon, S. Smith and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: M. Dixon (Grant Thornton LLP), K. Murray, D. 
Watson (Mazars) and one member of the public.

APOLOGIES
14 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rashid and Mr. 
A. Underdown.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
15 There were no declarations of interests. 

MINUTES
16 Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and 
Governance Committee, held 26th July 2018, be approved as a correct record. 

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER
17 The Committee considered the Annual Audit Letter from Grant 
Thornton. The Letter arose from the work that had been carried out at 
Rochdale Borough Council ('the Council') for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Letter was intended to communicate key messages and a commentary 
on the work to the Council and external stakeholders, including members of 
the public. In preparing the Letter, Grant Thornton had followed the National 
Audit Office's Code of Audit Practice and Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 
‘Audit Reporting’.

Grant Thornton reported their detailed findings from their audit work to this 
Committee as this was the Council Committee that is charged with 
governance over audit findings. 

The Committee was advised that whilst the main audit work for the Council 
had now ceased, they still had some outstanding work that would need to be 
reported to future meetings of the Committee including the annual housing 
benefit returns audit – which was due to be submitted to the Committee’s next 
meeting on 17th December 2018.

Members sought clarification on the ‘70:30 risk sharing arrangement for the 
Integrated Commissioning Board's pooled budget and were advised that this 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



was weighted 70% from the HMR CCG budget and 30% from the Rochdale 
Borough Council budget.

Resolved that the report be noted. 

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
18 The Committee received an update report from representatives of 
Mazars, the organisation that had recently taken over the responsibility for 
auditing the Council from Grant Thornton. The report provided an update on 
progress in the delivery of their responsibilities as the Council’s external 
auditors.

The submitted report summarised the key audit stages in respect of 2018/19 
work. Upon completion of their initial planning and risk assessment work 
Mazars intended to submit their Audit Strategy Memorandum to a future 
meeting of the Committee. 

Representatives from Mazars had met with senior staff from the Council’s 
Finance Service to discuss the audit process for 2018/19 and to agree 
timetables for the completion of their work.

In considering the report a member sought clarification as to whether the 
Council was a subscriber of the Local Government Association’s LG Inform 
group? Officers undertook to investigate this and to report back to the 
Committee.

Resolved: that the update report be noted and welcomed. 

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION
19 The Committee considered a report of the Head of Governance which 
advised that the Council undertakes an annual review of the content of its 
constitution to ensure that its content remains appropriate and any changes 
arising from legislative requirements are captured. Members had also 
identified a number of areas to be addressed as part of the review.

In considering the report Members raised the following:- 
a. Clarification on the process for written questions at full Council
b. Concerns that the appointment of Township Chairs could be guided by 
the political balance of the Council as a whole rather than of a particular 
Township area
c. Clarification as to the status of the current review of the Township 
Committee function that was not included in the report. In this regard it was 
confirmed that at the present time the proposals for the future operations of 
Township Committees in the Borough had yet to be put before Members and 
that the Constitution would be re-aligned to account for any future decision.    
d. If the updated proposals in the report were compliant with recently 
introduced legislation relating to GDPR?
e. Clarification of the role of the Monitoring Officer in terms of his 
responsibilities for granting dispensations under ‘Functions related to the 
Code of Conduct for Councillors and voting co-opted members

Page 4



f. Confirmation as to grant payments made under the heading of ‘Key 
Controls’: Part 4(G) Financial Regulations.
g. Clarification on the power and roles of the Council’s overview and 
scrutiny committees.

Resolved: That the report be noted.   

COMMITTEE PROCEDURES
20 The Committee considered a report of the Assistant Director (Legal, 
Governance and Workforce) that presented a revised procedure for hearing 
complaints under the Code of Conduct. It was considered to be good practice 
to adopt such a written procedure.

In considering the report a Member requested that the actual number of 
Members that are required to be in attendance at a hearing for that hearing to 
be quorate be included in the Hearings Procedure. A Member also sought 
clarification on the reporting procedures to be followed if a complaint was 
received against one of the Council’s political group leaders. 

Resolved:
1. The hearing procedure appended to the report of the Assistant Director 

(Legal, Governance and Workforce) be adopted, subject to clarification 
of the quorum of members at hearings

2. The Monitoring Officer be delegated to make minor amendments from 
time to time.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q1 2018/19
21 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources 
which provided a summary of the Risk Management work during Quarter 1 of 
2018/19. 

The Committee was advised that an action plan was in progress to prepare 
comprehensive risk registers for all Intervention projects associated with the 
integration of health and social care services under the Rochdale Locality 
Plan. 

The Insurance Team achieved total claims cost mitigation for Quarter 1 of 
£489,873.85 when comparing the highest reserves for closed claims against 
the final settlement amounts. The 196 new claims submitted to the team in the 
quarter represented a seasonal increase higher than normal due to poor 
winter weather conditions.

A review of alternative software products for the monitoring of performance 
and risk outcomes across the Council and HMR CCG had led to a proposal 
that the Pentana system (which was assessed to be the most efficient and 
cost effective system) would be the most viable option for Rochdale Council.

In terms of a table contained in the report, detailing ‘claims cost mitigation’ for 
Quarter 1 of 2018/19, a Member sought clarification on the numbers of 
fraudulent claims that were being made against the Council. 

Page 5



Resolved:
That the report be noted.

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 1 REPORT 2018/19
22 The Head of Internal Audit reported to the Committee summarising the 
work of the Internal Audit Team during the first quarter period of 2018/19. The 
Internal Audit team had been able to provide either substantial or adequate 
assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the audits 
completed during the period. Furthermore, Internal Audit completed 22% of 
the agreed Audit Plan and is on track to achieve the targeted completion of 
the Audit Plan of 96% by the year end.

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £134,275 in identifying savings and 
overpayments during the first quarter 2018/19 period (April – June 2018) 
together with 13 sanctions including one formal caution and 12 fines for fraud.

In considering the report members sought clarification as to the utilisation of 
the income that had been recouped by the Counter Fraud team and why there 
had been a reduction in fraud referrals.

Resolved:
That the report be noted

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER
23 The Head of Internal Audit advised the Committee that the work of the 
Council’s Internal Audit team was governed by the UK Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (PSIAS). The PSIAS require an Internal Audit Charter to be 
approved by the authority’s Audit and Governance Committee in order to 
define Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and responsibility. The Charter 
would establish Internal Audit’s position within the Council and reporting lines, 
authorising access to records, personnel and physical property relevant to the 
performance of audit work, and defines the scope of Internal Audit activity.

The current Internal Audit Charter had been approved by the Audit and 
Governance Committee at its meeting held 18th September 2017. Since then 
there have been six new members appointed to the Audit and Governance 
Committee. Furthermore some minor revisions to the Audit Charter had been 
identified by the Head of Internal Audit and as a result of the external Peer 
Review of Internal Audit which was concluded on 4th December 2017 and 
subsequently reported to the Committee’s meeting held 18th December 2017. 
These factors have therefore prompted the need to update the Internal Audit 
Charter to ensure it remains fit for purpose, in full compliance with the PSIAS 
and supports the current operation and remit of the Council’s Internal Audit 
team.

Resolved:
The Internal Audit Charter, as detailed in the Head of Internal Audit’s report, 
be approved.

Page 6



NEW CIPFA GUIDANCE ON AUDIT COMMITTEES
24
The Committee considered a report of the Head of Internal Audit that 
presented the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
Practical Guidance for Audit Committees for review and comment by the 
Committee. CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local 
Authorities and Police (2018) (‘the Position Statement’) set out CIPFA’s view 
of the role and functions of an audit committee, and replaced the previous 
2013 Position Statement. The Position Statement emphasised the importance 
of audit committees being in place in all principal local authorities and police 
bodies.  It also recognised that audit committees are a key component of 
governance.

In considering the report the Chair drew the attention of Members to the self-
assessment of good practice forms, presented in the appendix to the report, 
which he undertook to complete on behalf of the Committee and that a report 
thereon be presented to the Committee’s next meeting on 17th December 
2018. 

Resolved:
1. The report be noted
2. The Head of Internal Audit be requested to submit a report to the 

Committee’s next meeting on 17th December 2018, detailing the results 
of the Audit Committee Self-Assessment of Good Practice which the 
Chair undertook to complete on behalf of the Committee. 

Page 7



Audit Progress Report
Rochdale Borough Council
December 2018

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



CONTENTS

1. Audit progress

2. National publications

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Rochdale Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of the Audit and

Governance Committee. No responsibility is accepted to any other person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent

must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

2
Page 9



1. AUDIT PROGRESS

Purpose of this report

This report provides the Audit and Governance Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external

auditor.

Audit progress

This is our second progress report in respect of the 2018/19 audit year. Our key audit stages are summarised in the diagram shown

below.

Specific work in this period includes our initial audit planning for the 2018/19 audit year. We are pleased to report our Audit Strategy

Memorandum alongside this report, which sets out the findings from our audit planning procedures and the risk areas our audit

procedures will be focussed on. Our risk assessment remains a continuous process and we will update the Audit and Governance

Committee with any changes if they arise.

There are no significant matters arising from our work that we are required to report to you at this stage.

• Final review and disclosure checklist of financial 

statements

• Final partner review

• Agreeing content of letter of representation

• Reporting to Audit and Governance Committee 

• Reviewing post balance sheet events

• Signing our opinion 

• Updating our understanding of the Council

• Initial opinion and value for money risk 

assessments

• Development of our audit strategy

• Agreement of timetables

• Preliminary analytical procedures

• Documenting systems and controls

• Walkthrough procedures

• Consideration of key accounting 

issues

• Controls testing, including general 

and application IT controls

• Early substantive testing of transactions

• Review of draft financial statements

• Reassessment of audit strategy,              

revising as necessary

• Delivering our planned audit testing

• Continuous communication on emerging 

issues

• Clearance meeting

Planning

Nov 18-Jan 19

Interim

Jan-April 19

Fieldwork

June-July 19

Completion

July 2019

3

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

Page 10



2.    NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Publication/update Key points

National Audit Office (NAO)

1. Exiting the EU
The NAO has published a number of reports on the exit from 

the EU during 2018. 

2.
Departmental overview – Ministry of Housing, 

Communities and Local Government 

Focus on three key areas: financial sustainability; housing 

and homelessness; and devolution and reorganisation.

3. Departmental overview – Local authorities
The main body of the report covers: financial sustainability, 

housing and homelessness, and adult social care.

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)

4.
Statement expressing concerns with Councils funding 

commercial investment through borrowing 
CIPFA statement and link to article.

5. Local Authority Leasing Briefing 3 Key issue for local authorities and statement of accounts.

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)

6.
Report on the results of auditors’ work 2017/18: 

Principal local government and police bodies

Rochdale Borough Council met the deadline.  Report notes 

encouraging results across the country. 

7.
Consultation on 2019/20 scale of fees for opted-in 

bodies

2019/20 fees proposed to remain the same as 2018/19, 

being £105,007 for Rochdale Borough Council.

8. Oversight of audit quality, quarterly compliance reports No significant issues.

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

4
Page 11



2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

1. Exiting the EU, National Audit Office

The National Audit Office has produced a number of publications on the UK’s exit from the EU, including: 

• The UK border: preparedness for EU exit; 

• Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs; 

• Department for Transport; 

• Consumer protection, competition and state aid; and

• Exiting the EU: the financial settlement.  

https://www.nao.org.uk/search/pi_area/exiting-the-eu/type/report

2. Departmental overview: Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), National Audit Office

The Departmental Overview is designed to provide a quick and accessible overview of the Department and its performance over the last 

year. The report focuses on the Department’s responsibilities setting out how it is structured, how it spends its money, and its major 

programmes. It also covers key developments in its areas of work, including exiting the European Union, and findings from recent NAO 

reports.

The main body of the report focuses on three key areas: financial sustainability; housing and homelessness; and devolution and 

reorganisation. The report concludes by setting out future developments, risks and challenges impacting on MHCLG.

The report also includes a section on the Department for Exiting the EU (pdf page 8). 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/departmental-overview-ministry-of-housing-communities-and-local-government-2017-18/

3. Departmental overview: local authorities

The report summarises the work of local authorities, including:

• what they do and how they are organised;

• the system of accountability;

• where they get their funding and how they spend their money; and

• major programmes and developments across local authorities’ main business areas and services.

The main body of the report covers: financial sustainability; housing and homelessness; and adult social care.

The overview addresses further developments in the sector, including those on ‘fair funding’, empty homes and the government’s new 

Rough Sleeping Strategy will be driven by local authorities. It draws attention to the synergies required across local authorities and with 

MHCLG for the successful implementation of these programmes.

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/departmental-overview-local-authorities-2017-18/

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

5
Page 12

https://www.nao.org.uk/search/pi_area/exiting-the-eu/type/report
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/departmental-overview-ministry-of-housing-communities-and-local-government-2017-18/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/departmental-overview-local-authorities-2017-18/


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

4.    Statement expressing concerns with Councils funding commercial investment through borrowing, CIPFA

The Committee may be interested to note the CIPFA statement issued recently expressing concerns around commercial investment. The 

statement raises concerns with potential practices related to borrowing to fund commercial investment. CIPFA confirm in the statement 

that they will be issuing further guidance on the issue shortly.

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/statement-from-cipfa-on-borrowing-in-advance-of-need-and-

investments-in-commercial-properties

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-warns-councils-over-serious-commercial-activity-concerns

5.    Local Authority Leasing Briefing 3, CIPFA

This briefing focuses on discount rates, lessor accounting, disclosure requirements, concessionary leases – lessees and the 

measurement of the service concession arrangement (PFI/PPP) liability.

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/technical-panels-and-boards/cipfa-lasaac-local-authority-code-board/local-authority-leasing-

briefings

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

6
Page 13

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/statement-from-cipfa-on-borrowing-in-advance-of-need-and-investments-in-commercial-properties
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-warns-councils-over-serious-commercial-activity-concerns
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/technical-panels-and-boards/cipfa-lasaac-local-authority-code-board/local-authority-leasing-briefings


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

6.    Report on the results of auditors’ work 2017/18: Principal local government and police bodies, Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited

The report covers the timeliness and quality of financial reporting, auditors’ local value for money work, and the extent to which auditors 

used their statutory reporting powers at 495 principal local government and police bodies for 2017/18. 

For 2017/18, the statutory accounts publication deadline came forward by two months to 31 July 2018. This was challenging for bodies 

and auditors and it is encouraging that 87 per cent of audited bodies received an audit opinion by the new deadline.

The number of qualified conclusions on value for money arrangements looks set to remain relatively constant. It currently stands at 7 per 

cent (32 councils, 1 fire and rescue authority, 1 police body and 2 other local government bodies) compared to 8 per cent for 2016/17, with 

a further 30 conclusions for 2017/18 still to be issued.

All the opinions issued to date in relation to bodies’ financial statements are unqualified, as was the case for the 2016/17 accounts. 

Auditors have made statutory recommendations to three bodies, compared to two such cases in respect of  2016/17, and issued an 

advisory notice to one body.

The most common reasons for auditors issuing non-standard conclusions for 2017/18 were: 

• the impact of issues identified in the reports of statutory inspectorates – 16 bodies; 

• corporate governance issues – 12 bodies; 

• financial sustainability concerns – 6 bodies; and 

• procurement/contract management issues – 5 bodies. 

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

7.    Consultation on 2019/20 scale of fees for opted-in bodies, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) has published its consultation on the 2019/20 scale of fees for principal local government 

bodies that have opted into the appointing person arrangements. 

The consultation proposes that scale audit fees for 2019/20, the second year of the five-year appointing period, should remain the same 

as the fees applicable for 2018/19. PSAA will review and update its assumptions and estimates each year, and consult on scale fees for 

the following year.

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/2019-2020scaleoffees/

8.     Oversight of audit quality, quarterly compliance reports 2017/18 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd

There are no significant issues arising in the latest quarterly compliance report issued by PSAA. 

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/contract-compliance-monitoring/principal-audits/mazars-audit-quality

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

7
Page 14

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/2019-2020scaleoffees/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/contract-compliance-monitoring/principal-audits/mazars-audit-quality


Director: Karen Murray

Phone: 0161 238 9248 

Mobile: 07721 234 043

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

Manager: Daniel Watson

Phone: 0161 238 9349 
Mobile: 07909 985 324
Email:  daniel.watson@mazars.co.uk

CONTACT

Page 15

mailto:Karen.murray@mazars.co.uk
mailto:diane.harold@mazars.co.uk


Audit Strategy Memorandum
Rochdale Borough Council
Year ending 31 March 2019

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



CONTENTS

1. Engagement and responsibilities summary

2. Your audit engagement team

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

4. Materiality and misstatements

5. Significant risks and key judgement areas

6. Value for Money

7. Fees for audit and other services

8. Our commitment to independence

Appendix A – Key communication points

Appendix B - Forthcoming accounting and other issues

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Rochdale Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of the Audit and

Governance Committee as the appropriate sub-committee charged with governance . No responsibility is accepted to any other person in

respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a

third party.

2
Page 17



Mazars LLP

One St Peter’s Square

Manchester

M2 3DE

Members of the Audit & Governance Committee

Rochdale Borough Council

Smith Street

Rochdale

OL16 1XU

3rd December 2018

Dear Sirs / Madams

Audit Strategy Memorandum – Year ending 31 March 2019

We are pleased to present our Audit Strategy Memorandum for Rochdale Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2019

The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit approach, highlight significant audit risks and areas of key judgements and

provide you with the details of our audit team. As it is a fundamental requirement that an auditor is, and is seen to be, independent of its

clients, Section 8 of this document also summarises our considerations and conclusions on our independence as auditors.

We consider two-way communication with you to be key to a successful audit and important in:

• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of each of us;

• sharing information to assist each of us to fulfil our respective responsibilities;

• providing you with constructive observations arising from the audit process; and

• ensuring that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding of your attitude and views in respect of the internal and external

operational, financial, compliance and other risks facing Rochdale Borough Council which may affect the audit, including the

likelihood of those risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed.

This document, which has been prepared following our initial planning discussions with management, is the basis for discussion of our

audit approach, and any questions or input you may have on our approach or role as auditor.

This document also contains specific appendices that outline our key communications with you during the course of the audit, and

forthcoming accounting issues and other issues that may be of interest.

Client service is extremely important to us and we strive to continuously provide technical excellence with the highest level of service

quality, together with continuous improvement to exceed your expectations so, if you have any concerns or comments about this

document or audit approach, please contact me on 0161 238 9248.

Yours faithfully

Karen Murray

Mazars LLP

3
Page 18



1. ENGAGEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITIES SUMMARY

Overview of engagement

We are appointed to perform the external audit of Rochdale Borough Council (the Council) for the year to 31 March 2019. The scope of

our engagement is set out in the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies, issued by Public Sector Audit

Appointments Ltd (PSAA) available from the PSAA website: https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/

Our responsibilities

Our responsibilities are principally derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice

issued by the National Audit Office (NAO), as outlined below:

Our audit does not relieve management or those charged with governance, of their responsibilities. The responsibility for safeguarding
assets and for the prevention and detection of fraud, error and non-compliance with law or regulations rests with both those charged with
governance and management. In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), we plan and perform our audit so as to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. However our audit should not be relied upon to identify all such misstatements.

As part of our audit procedures in relation to fraud we are required to enquire of those charged with governance as to their knowledge of

instances of fraud, the risk of fraud and their views on management controls that mitigate the fraud risks.

The Council is required to prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis by the Code of Practice on Local Authority

Accounting. As auditors, we are required to consider the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption in the preparation of

the financial statements and the adequacy of disclosures made.

For the purpose of our audit, we have identified the Audit and Governance Committee as those charged with governance.

We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements.

Our audit is planned and performed so to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free

from material error and give a true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the Council for the

year.

Going 

concern

Fraud

We are required to conclude whether the Council has proper arrangements in place to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in it its use of resources. We discuss our approach to Value for Money work further 

in section 6 of this report.

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the opportunity to question us 

about the accounting records of the Council and consider any objection made to the accounts.  We also have a 

broad range of reporting responsibilities and powers that are unique to the audit of local authorities in the United 

Kingdom.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

We report to the NAO on the consistency of the Council’s financial statements with its Whole of Government 

Accounts (WGA) submission.  

Audit 

opinion

Reporting 

to the 

NAO

Value for 

Money

Electors’ 

rights

4
Page 19

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


2. YOUR AUDIT ENGAGEMENT TEAM

Engagement 

Lead

Engagement 

Manager

Audit Senior

• Karen Murray

• karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

• 0161 238 9248

• Daniel Watson

• daniel.watson@mazars.co.uk

• 0161 238 9349

• Anna-Maria Delcheva

• anna-maria.delcheva@mazars.co.uk

• 0161 238 9238

In addition as outlined in our engagement pack an engagement quality control reviewer has been appointed for this engagement.

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Value for 
Money

6. Fees
7.  

Independence

8. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

Appendices

5

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 20



3. AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE

Audit scope

Our audit approach is designed to provide an audit that complies with all professional requirements.

Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), relevant ethical and

professional standards, our own audit approach and in accordance with the terms of our engagement. Our work is focused on those

aspects of your business which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement, such as those affected by management

judgement and estimation, application of new accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or areas which

have been found to contain material errors in the past.

Audit approach

Our audit approach is a risk-based approach primarily driven by the risks we consider to result in a higher risk of material misstatement of

the financial statements. Once we have completed our risk assessment, we develop our audit strategy and design audit procedures in

response to this assessment.

If we conclude that appropriately-designed controls are in place then we may plan to test and rely upon these controls. If we decide

controls are not appropriately designed, or we decide it would be more efficient to do so, we may take a wholly substantive approach to

our audit testing. Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion level and

comprise tests of details (of classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures) and substantive analytical procedures.

Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, which take into account our evaluation of the operating effectiveness of

controls, we are required to design and perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and

disclosure.

Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material

misstatement and give a true and fair view. The concept of materiality and how we define a misstatement is explained in more detail in

section 4.

The diagram below outlines the procedures we perform at the different stages of the audit.

• Final review and disclosure checklist of financial 

statements

• Final partner and EQCR review

• Agreeing content of letter of representation

• Reporting to Audit and Governance 

Committee 

• Reviewing post balance sheet events

• Signing our opinion 

• Updating our understanding of the Council

• Initial opinion and value for money risk 

assessments

• Development of our audit strategy

• Agreement of timetables

• Preliminary analytical procedures

• Documenting systems and controls

• Walkthrough procedures

• Consideration of key accounting 

issues

• Controls testing, including general 

and application IT controls

• Early substantive testing of transactions

• Review of draft financial statements

• Reassessment of audit strategy,              

revising as necessary

• Delivering our planned audit testing

• Continuous communication on emerging 

issues

• Clearance meeting

Planning

Nov 18-Jan 19

Interim

Jan – Apr 19

Fieldwork

June – Jul 19

Completion

July 19

6

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 21



3. AUDIT SCOPE, APPROACH AND TIMELINE (CONTINUED)

Reliance on internal audit

Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and timing of our audit procedures.

We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their work prior to the commencement of our controls evaluation

procedures.

We are not planning to rely on the work of internal audit, but should we do so, we will evaluate the work performed by your internal audit

team and perform our own audit procedures to determine its adequacy for our audit.

Management’s and our experts

Management makes use of experts in specific areas when preparing the Council’s financial statements. We also use experts to assist us

to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on specific items of account.

Items of account Management's expert Our expert

Defined benefit liability Hyman Robertson Actuaries
PwC, consulting actuary, on behalf of

National Audit Office

Property, plant and equipment valuation Internal Valuations Team

We will use available third party

information to challenge the valuer’s

key assumptions.

Valuation of shareholding in Manchester

Airport Holding Limited
BDO LLP In-house Mazars valuation team

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities Link Assets Services

We will review the valuer’s

methodology to gain assurance that

the fair value disclosures of the

Council’s financial assets and liabilities

are materially correct.

7

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 22



4.    MATERIALITY AND MISSTATEMENTS

Summary of initial materiality thresholds

Materiality

Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of financial statements as a

whole. Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and nature of a misstatement, or a

combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of the common financial information needs of users as a

group and not on specific individual users.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of the financial information

needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume that users:

• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts;

• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, judgement and the consideration

of future events; and

• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and qualitative factors.

Whilst planning, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material and which provides a basis for

determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying and assessing the risk of material misstatement and

determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.

The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which uncorrected misstatements, either

individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial.

We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of information that would have caused

us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information at the planning stage.

Our provisional materiality is set based on a benchmark of gross revenue expenditure at provision of services level. We will identify a

figure for materiality but identify separate levels for procedures designed to detect individual errors, and also a level above which all

identified errors will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.

We consider that revenue expenditure remains the key focus of users of the financial statements and, as such, we base our materiality

levels around this benchmark.

We expect to set a materiality threshold at 2% of gross revenue expenditure at the surplus/deficit on provision of services level.

Threshold Initial threshold (£’000s)

Overall materiality 11,982

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported to the Audit and 

Governance Committee
359

8

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 23



4. MATERIALITY AND MISSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Based on the prior year audited accounts, we anticipate the overall materiality for the year ending 31st March 2019 to be in the region of

£11,982k.

After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it is set at an appropriate level.

Performance Materiality

Performance materiality is the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality for the financial statements as a whole to 

reduce, to an appropriately low level, the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality 

for the financial statements as a whole. Our initial assessment of performance materiality is based on low inherent risk, meaning that we 

have applied 65% of overall materiality as performance materiality. 

Specific items of lower materiality

We have also calculated materiality for specific classes of transactions, balances or disclosures where we determine that misstatements

of a lesser amount than materiality for the financial statements as a whole, could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of

users taken on the basis of the financial statements. We have set specific materiality for the following items of account:

* Reflecting movement from one salary band to another

Reporting Misstatements Threshold

We aggregate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We set a level of triviality for individual errors

identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we

consider would not need to be accumulated because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a material effect

on the financial statements. Based on our preliminary assessment of overall materiality, our proposed triviality threshold is £359k based

on 3% of overall materiality. If you have any queries about this please do not hesitate to raise these with Karen Murray.

Reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee

To comply with International Standards on Auditing (UK), the following three types of audit differences will be presented to the Audit and

Governance Committee:

• summary of adjusted audit differences;

• summary of unadjusted audit differences; and

• summary of disclosure differences (adjusted and unadjusted).

9

Item of account Specific materiality

Officer Remuneration bandings £5,000 *

Related party transactions £50,000

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 24



5. SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS

Following the risk assessment approach discussed in section 3 of this document, we have identified relevant risks to the audit of financial

statements. The risks that we identify are categorised as significant, enhanced or standard, as defined below:

The summary risk assessment, illustrated in the table below, highlights those risks which we deem to be significant. We have

summarised our audit response to these risks on the next page.

Significant risk A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s judgment, requires

special audit consideration. For any significant risk, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of the entity’s controls,

including control activities relevant to that risk.

Enhanced risk An enhanced risk is an area of higher assessed risk of material misstatement at audit assertion level other than a

significant risk. Enhanced risks incorporate but may not be limited to:

• key areas of management judgement, including accounting estimates which are material but are not

considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement; and

• other audit assertion risks arising from significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

Standard risk This is related to relatively routine, non-complex transactions that tend to be subject to systematic processing and

require little management judgement. Although it is considered that there is a risk of material misstatement, there are

no elevated or special factors related to the nature, the likely magnitude of the potential misstatements or the

likelihood of the risk occurring.

H
igh

HighLow

Low

Likelihood

F
inancial

im
pact

1

2

Risk

1 Management override of control

2 Revenue recognition

3 Property, plant and equipment valuation

4 Defined benefit liability valuation

3

4

10

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 25



5. SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS 
(CONTINUED)

We provide more detail on the identified risks and our testing approach with respect to significant risks in the table below. An audit is a

dynamic process, should we change our view of risk or approach to address the identified risks during the course of our audit, we will

report this to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Significant risks

Description of risk Planned response

1 Management override of controls

Management at various levels within an organisation 

are in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of 

their ability to manipulate accounting records and 

prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding 

controls that otherwise appear to be operating 

effectively. Due to the unpredictable way in which 

such override could occur there is a risk of material 

misstatement due to fraud on all audits. 

We plan to address the management override of controls risk 

through performing audit work over accounting estimates, journal 

entries and significant transactions outside the normal course of 

business or otherwise unusual.

2 Revenue recognition

Our audit methodology incorporates this risk as a 

significant risk at all audits, although based on the 

circumstances of each audit, it is rebuttable. Based 

on our initial knowledge and planning discussions we 

have concluded that we can rebut the presumption of 

a revenue recognition risk for the Council’s revenue 

income and expenditure. 

We do not consider this to be a significant risk as the Council’s 

income streams are inherently stable, well controlled and there is little 

incentive to manipulate revenue recognition. We therefore rebut this 

risk and do not incorporate specific risk procedures over and above 

our standard fraud procedures to address the management override 

of controls risk.

Our audit approach will however incorporate testing from payments 

and receipts around the year-end to provide assurance that there are 

no material unrecorded items of income and expenditure in the 

2018/19 accounts.

11

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 26



5. SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS 
(CONTINUED)

Significant risks continued

Description of risk Planned response

3 Property, plant and equipment valuation

The CIPFA Code requires that where assets are 

subject to revaluation, their year end carrying value 

should reflect the fair value at that date. The Council 

has adopted a rolling revaluation model which sees 

all land and buildings revalued in a four year cycle.  

The valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment 

involves the use of a management expert (the 

valuer), and incorporates assumptions and estimates 

which impact materially on the reported value. There 

are risks relating to the valuation process.

As a result of the rolling programme of revaluations, 

there is a risk that individual assets which have not 

been revalued for up to three years are not valued at 

their materially correct fair value. In addition, as the 

valuations are undertaken through the year there is a 

risk that the fair value as the assets is materially 

different at the year end. Each year the Council 

undertakes a desk-top exercise, with regards to local 

property indices, to confirm the value of assets not 

valued in year are materially correct.

In relation to the valuation of property, plant & equipment we will: 

• Critically assess the Council’s valuer’s scope of work, 

qualifications, objectivity and independence to carry out the 

Council’s programme of revaluations;

• Consider whether the overall revaluation methodology used by 

the Council valuer is in line with industry practice, the CIPFA 

Code of Practice and the Council’s accounting policies;

• Critically assess the appropriateness of the underlying data and 

the assumptions used in the valuer’s calculations, based on our 

expectations by reference to sector and local knowledge;

• Assess the movement in market indices between the revaluation 

dates and the year end to determine whether there have been 

material movements over that time;

• Critically assess the treatment of the upward and downward 

revaluations in the Council’s financial statements with regards to 

the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice;

• Critically assess the approach that the Council adopts to ensure 

that assets not subject to revaluation in 2018/19 are materially 

correct, including considering the robustness of that approach in 

light of the valuation information reported by the Council’s valuers;

• Test a sample of items of capital expenditure in 2018/19 to 

confirm that the additions are appropriately valued in the financial 

statements.

12

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 27



5. SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND KEY JUDGEMENT AREAS 
(CONTINUED)

Significant risks continued

Description of risk Planned response

4 Defined benefit liability valuation

The net pension liability represents a material 

element of the Council’s balance sheet. The Council 

is an admitted body of Greater Manchester Pension 

Fund, which had its last triennial valuation completed 

as at 31 March 2016.

The valuation of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme relies on a number of assumptions, most 

notably around the actuarial assumptions, and 

actuarial methodology which results in the Council’s 

overall valuation.

There are financial assumptions and demographic 

assumptions used in the calculation of the Council’s 

valuation, such as the discount rate, inflation rates 

and mortality rates. The assumptions should also 

reflect the profile of the Council’s employees, and 

should be based on appropriate data. The basis of 

the assumptions is derived on a consistent basis 

year to year, or updated to reflect any changes.

There is a risk that the assumptions and 

methodology used in valuing the Council’s pension 

obligation are not reasonable or appropriate to the 

Council’s circumstances. This could have a material 

impact to the net pension liability in 2018/19.

In relation to the valuation of the Council’s defined benefit pension 

liability we will:

• Critically assess the competency, objectivity and independence of 

the Greater Manchester Pension Fund’s Actuary, Hymans 

Robertson;

• Liaise with the auditors of the Greater Manchester Pension Fund 

to gain assurance that the controls in place at the Pension Fund 

are operating effectively. This will include the processes and 

controls in place to ensure data provided to the Actuary by the 

Pension Fund for the purposes of the IAS19 valuation is complete 

and accurate;

• Review the appropriateness of the Pension Asset and Liability 

valuation methodologies applied by the Pension Fund Actuary, 

and the key assumptions included within the valuation. This will 

include comparing them to expected ranges, utilising information 

provided by PWC, consulting actuary engaged by the National 

Audit Office;

• Agree the data in the IAS 19 valuation report provided by the 

Fund Actuary for accounting purposes to the pension accounting 

entries and disclosures in the Council’s financial statements.

13

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 28



6. VALUE FOR MONEY 

Our approach to Value for Money

We are required to form a conclusion as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and

effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out, and sets 

out the overall criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. 

The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 

and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’  

To assist auditors in reaching a conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:

• informed decision making;

• sustainable resource deployment; and

• working with partners and other third parties. 

A summary of the work we undertake to reach our conclusion is provided below:

Significant Value for Money risks

The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work at the planning stage to identify whether or not a Value for Money (VFM) exists.  Risk, 

in the context of our VFM work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place at the 

Council being inadequate. As outlined above, we draw on our deep understanding of the Council and its partners, the local and national 

economy and wider knowledge of the public sector.

For the 2018/19 financial year, we have identified the following significant risks to our VFM work:

Description of  significant risk Planned response

Health and Social Care Integration 

Rochdale Borough Council continues to work with HMR CCG to integrate health 

and social care across the Borough. The two organisations are embedding 

governance arrangements to ensure the delivery of sustainable improvements to 

the health and wellbeing of local residents. There is a significant gap in the 

pooled budget set by the two organisations for 2018/19 and beyond.

This risk links to the Council's arrangements for working with third parties to 

deliver its strategic priorities, manage risks effectively and maintain a sound 

system of internal control.

To address this risk we will:

• Review progress in integrating the 

governance arrangements of the Council and 

CCG

• Review the governance arrangements in 

place for transferring services to the Local 

Care Organisation

• Review progress in delivering the pooled 

fund and required savings for current and 

future years

14

Risk assessment

NAO Guidance

Sector-wide issues

Risk mitigation work Other procedures

Consider the work of regulators

Planned procedures to mitigate 

the risk of forming an incorrect 

conclusion on arrangements

Consider the Annual 

Governance StatementYour operational and business 

risks

Consistency review and reality 

checkKnowledge from other audit work

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 29



6. VALUE FOR MONEY 

Significant Value for Money Risks continued

Description of  significant risk Planned response

Financial Pressures and Budget Gap

The Council continues to face significant financial pressures over the coming 

years with reduced funding and increasing demand on services. The Council has 

a forecast budget gap over the next five years of £26.5m and will need to deliver 

significant savings in order to address this.

This risk links to the Council's arrangements for sustainable resource 

deployment.

To address this risk we will:

• Review the Council's outturn against the 

2018-19 budgeted position

• Review the Council's progress in setting a 

balanced budget for 2019/20

• Review the Council's arrangements for 

identifying savings to address the funding 

gap going forwards

Response to OFSTED’s Inspection of Children’s Services 

In March 2018 OFSTED issued a report on their latest inspection of the Council's 

children's services. The report deemed the service overall as requiring 

improvement and noted a number of areas where improvement could be made.

This risk links to the Council's arrangements for informed decision making 

through its governance arrangements and maintaining a sound system of internal 

control.

To address this risk we will:

• Review the processes the Council has put in 

place and the progress made to address the 

findings from the OFSTED report.

15

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 30



7. FEES FOR AUDIT AND OTHER SERVICES

Fees for work as the Council’s appointed auditor

At this stage of the audit we are not planning any divergence from the scale fees set by PSAA as communicated in our fee letter of 25th

April 2018.

Fees for non-PSAA work

We have not been engaged by the Council to carry out any additional work over and above the audit of the Council’s statutory audit. In

particular the Council has engaged a different audit firm to provide the assurance work on the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim and

Teachers’ Pensions return for 2018/19.

Should we be engaged to undertake any additional work we will consider whether there are any actual, potential or perceived threats to

our independence. Further information about our responsibilities in relation to independence is provided in section 8.

Service 2017/18 fee 2018/19 fee

Code audit work 136,373 105,007

16

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 31



8. OUR COMMITMENT TO INDEPENDENCE

We are committed to independence and are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to you at least annually, in writing, that

we comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard. In addition, we communicate any matters or relationship which we

believe may have a bearing on our independence or the objectivity of the audit team.

Based on the information provided by you and our own internal procedures to safeguard our independence as auditors, we confirm that in

our professional judgement there are no relationships between us and any of our related or subsidiary entities, and you and your related

entities creating any unacceptable threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your

auditors.

We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work with integrity, objectivity and

independence. These policies include:

• all partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration;

• all new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also complete computer-based ethics training;

• rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team;

• use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires all non-audit services to be approved

in advance by the audit engagement partner.

We confirm, as at the date of this document, that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, and Mazars LLP are

independent and comply with relevant ethical requirements. However, if at any time you have concerns or questions about our integrity,

objectivity or independence please discuss these with Karen Murray in the first instance.

Prior to the provision of any non-audit services Karen Murray will undertake appropriate procedures to consider and fully assess the

impact that providing the service may have on our auditor independence.

No threats to our independence have been identified.

Any emerging independence threats and associated identified safeguards will be communicated in our Audit Completion Report.

17

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 32



APPENDIX A – KEY COMMUNICATION POINTS

ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’, ISA (UK) 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To

Those Charged With Governance And Management’ and other ISAs (UK) specifically require us to communicate the following:

Required communication Audit Strategy 

Memorandum

Audit Completion 

Report

Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements and our wider 

responsibilities 

Planned scope and timing of the audit 

Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement 

Our commitment to independence  

Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors 

Materiality and misstatements  

Fees for audit and other services 

Significant deficiencies in internal control 

Significant findings from the audit 

Significant matters discussed with management 

Our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of management judgement 

Summary of misstatements 

Management representation letter 

Our proposed draft audit report 

18

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 33



APPENDIX B – FORTHCOMING ACCOUNTING AND OTHER 
ISSUES

Changes relevant to 2018/19

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - the standard replaces IAS 39 and introduces significant changes to the recognition and measurement of

the Council’s financial instruments, particularly its financial assets.

Although the accounting changes may be complex and may require the reclassification of some instruments, it is likely that the Council

will continue to measure the majority of its financial assets at amortised costs.

For Councils that hold instruments that will be required to be measured at fair value under the new standard, there may be instances

where changes in these fair values are recognised immediately and impact on the general fund. MHCLG have announced a statutory

provision will be put in place to mitigate the impact of fair value movements of pooled investment funds on local authority general fund

balances.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - the 2018/19 Code also applies the requirements of IFRS 15, but it is unlikely that this

will have significant implications for most local authorities.

There are no other significant changes to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code) for 2018/19.

Changes in future years

Accounting standard Year of application Implications

IFRS 16 – Leases 2019/20

We anticipate that the new leasing standard will be adopted by the Code 

for the 2019/20 financial year, however this has not yet been confirmed.  

IFRS 16 will replace the existing leasing standard, IAS 17, and will 

introduce significant changes, particularly for lessees.  The requirements 

for lessors will be largely unchanged from the position in IAS 17.

Lessees will need to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases (except 

short-life or low-value leases) as the distinction between operating 

leases and finance leases is removed. 

The introduction of this standard is likely to lead to significant work being 

required in order to identify all leases to which the Council (and its 

schools) are party to.

19

1. Engagement and 
responsibilities

2. Your audit 
team

3. Audit scope
4. Materiality 

and 
Misstatements

5. Significant 
risks and key 
judgements

6. Value for 
Money

7.  Fees
8. 

Independence
Appendices

Page 34



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 17th December 2018  
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Quarter 2 Report 2018/19

Executive Summary

1. This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the second 
quarter of 2018/19. Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or 
adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the 
audits completed during the period. Furthermore, Internal Audit has completed 
44% of the agreed Audit Plan and is on track to achieve the targeted 
completion of the Audit Plan of 96% by the year end.

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £344,081 in identifying savings and 
overpayments during the period (£478,356 for the 6 months to 30 September 
2018) together with 3 sanctions comprising 3 fines for fraud. This included 
£304,501 recovered in business rates through working with the Business 
Rates Team.

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of the Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through Internal Audit work of the management of risk.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in 
accordance with their work programme and overall responsibility for 
governance, to scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the second quarter 
of 2018/19 on all Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal 
Audit is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1 

4.2

4.3

4.4

Risk Based Audit Approach

10. Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the 
internal control environment, risk management and governance 
processes for the Council as a whole, as set out within the Internal Audit 
Charter. A risk based approach is taken within individual audit reviews, 
embracing operational and management controls and the wider 
business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk 
identification and exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to 
manage those risks. 

In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance 
opinion on how effectively risks are being managed in the area under 
review. These opinions are as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited
A number of key risks are not managed effectively. 
The control systems in operation are in need of 
significant improvement.

Adequate
The control systems in operation are generally 
sound. However, opportunities exist to improve the 
management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to 
manage risks effectively.

In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with 
the assurance that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a 
timely basis, any ‘red’ reports on which we can provide only limited 
assurance will be highlighted within section 6 of this report. These will be 
subject to specific discussion and challenge by Members with senior 
officers from the relevant Service. Thereafter, Internal Audit will perform a 
formal follow up audit within a six month period or sooner if the due date for 
completing the agreed actions is earlier and report back to the Audit and 
Governance Committee with our findings.

In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and 
medium priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm 
completion once the due dates have passed. Any delays in implementation 
will be reported to the Committee for further consideration. If some of the 
recommendations have not yet been actioned, Internal Audit will request 
reasons for the delay and confirmation of a revised date by which the 
action should be completed. The current status of the implementation of 
audit recommendations as confirmed by formal follow up audits is 
highlighted within Appendix B and any key issues will be highlighted to the 

Page 36



4.5

5

5.1

6

6.1

6.2

7

7.1

Members. Whilst in some cases implementation has not been achieved by 
the originally agreed dates, Internal Audit has received reasonable 
explanations to support the delays incurred and will continue to monitor 
progress through to the revised dates proposed by management. As such, 
there are no matters to bring to the attention of Members at this stage.

Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal 
responses to recommendations raised are received within one month of 
the issue date. Internal Audit actively follows up with management via an 
escalation process to ensure that the reports and actions are agreed in a 
timely manner. At present, there are no draft reports where responses are 
still outstanding beyond the agreed period.

Planned Work Completed During Quarter Two 

Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed 
during quarter two which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance 
opinion. Key areas for improvement are summarised for each audit with 
a specific focus on any agreed actions designated as high priority.

Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up 
Audits

No audit reviews with a limited assurance opinion have been completed 
during the period. 

The current status of all follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B. With 
regard to the outstanding actions relating to the Highways Contract 
Management audit, a further follow up confirmed that these actions are 
now substantially complete and subject only to certain matters being 
discussed and agreed at forthcoming meetings of both the Management 
Board and Highways Champions. Internal Audit will continue to monitor 
progress and outcomes in this area to ensure all the actions agreed are 
fully embedded within operational processes going forward.

Unplanned work

Procurement issues
  (Director – Neighbourhoods)

At the request of management, Internal Audit reviewed the processes and 
controls relating to certain procurement transactions to provide assurance 
that they remained effective. 

Whilst the review did not identify any significant issues, there were 
opportunities for improvement to ensure that:

 All officers receive appropriate training in relation to procurement 
legislation and processes;

 STAR are always engaged at an early stage in the procurement 
process;

 Contracts are awarded on a timely basis following conclusion of the 

Page 37



7.2

7.3

7.4

8

8.1

8.2

procurement process.
 
Organisations Funded By Public Money
  (Director – Economy)

At the request of management and in line with the standard policy of 
performing financial and governance audits of external organisations which 
receive funding from the Council with a view to ensuring proper 
accountability of public funds, Internal Audit carried out a review of two 
such external organisations.

As with all such small organisations, Internal Audit recognised that we 
could not expect the same level of controls and segregation of duties as 
would be expected in a larger organisation. In spite of this, financial 
controls were considered to be generally sound. However, there were 
areas of governance and control that can be improved and various 
recommendations were agreed with management to enhance financial 
controls.

Coroners Service
  (Director – Neighbourhoods)

At the request of management Internal Audit was requested to review the 
financial controls relating to processes associated with the commissioning 
of services provided through the Coroner’s Office.

The audit concluded that financial controls were appropriate and also noted 
enhancements to processes that had been implemented over the past year 
to further strengthen control, thereby ensuring all payments made are valid, 
are supported by appropriate documentation and are paid in line with 
agreed rates.

Public Health Scheme of Delegation
 (Director of Public Health)

At the request of management, Internal Audit was requested to provide 
assurance that the expenditure approval limits set for officers within the 
Public Health Directorate’s Scheme of Delegation are appropriate and in 
line with those adopted by other Council Services. The review confirmed 
that the Scheme of Delegation was broadly in line with other Council 
Services and appeared reasonable in view of the nature of operations and 
organisational structure.

Counter Fraud Team

A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team from July to 
September 2018 is set out below.

Performance

A total of 178 fraud referrals were received in the second quarter of this 

Page 38



8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

financial year, compared to 314 from the same period in 2017/18. The main 
sources of these referrals came from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), the 
Partnership Enforcement Team, anonymous information and RBC 
employees. A significant number of these do not progress to formal 
investigation by the team as they are either passed to the DWP or closed 
due to apparent malicious intent or the fact that there is not enough 
information to progress the matter.

From July to September 2018 the team achieved £344,081 in additional 
savings and overpayments including £304,501 recovered in business rates 
through working with the Business Rates Team. This figure derives from 
successful investigations into transactions associated with a number of 
Service areas including Benefits, Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue Badge 
and Adult Care, as well as additional income from fraud financial penalties, 
administrative penalties and court costs. 

81% of referrals have resulted in positive outcomes in this second quarter. 

3 sanctions were achieved in quarter two, comprising of 3 fines for fraud. 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 
have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received 
from the NFI.  

The Team have started to check the data received in the 2017/18 NFI 
Single Person Discount, Council Tax matches. Proactive visits were 
conducted on the 19th and 20th September and results from these visits will 
be reported in the next quarter.   

The NFI Housing Benefit work is drawing to an end. The recommended 
matches have been checked and samples of the key reports have also 
been checked. Housing Benefit data for the 2018/19 NFI has already been 
submitted to the Cabinet Office for it to be data matched. The Counter 
Fraud Teams within DWP and the Council will receive any relevant data 
matches back from the Cabinet Office on 31 January 2019 to check and 
investigate further where appropriate.

In addition, the team have completed checking the Council Tax Reduction 
reports and matches. All investigations have now been closed and savings 
have been recorded. Council Tax Reduction data for the 2018/19 NFI has 
already been submitted to the Cabinet Office for it to be data matched.  
The Counter Fraud Team within the Council will receive any relevant data 
matches back from the Cabinet Office on 31 January 2019 to check and 
investigate further where appropriate.  

The Council is currently taking part in a pilot data matching exercise run by 
the Cabinet Office and covering business rates data.  Business rates data 
has been matched together with existing NFI data such as; residential care 
home data and premises data, within and between participating bodies to 

Page 39



8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

identify potential business rates fraud.  For example, one such possible 
fraud being a company that claims small business rates relief more than 
once at any one time.  Investigations are currently taking place and are 
scheduled to be completed by 31 December 2018. So far one small 
business relief to the value of £9,647.48 has been removed and a further 
update on the outcome of this pilot exercise will be provided in 2019.

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 
provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.  Replies have been made to 
over 90 Data Protection Requests from July to September 2018, not 
including the work that is completed in the PET. 

Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, 
skills and powers from the different enforcement agencies are used to 
prevent and detect fraud within the Borough. Currently the following cross-
agency teams attend the weekly meeting: GMP – Organised Crime Team; 
Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s Services; Community 
Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; Fraud; Public Protection; 
Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service 
officials.

The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 43 ‘police checks’ on 
Rochdale BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and 
absconders. In addition, a total of 2 fraud referrals have been closed with 
positive outcomes as a result of the PET. The total savings on these cases 
amounts to over £2,500. 
  
The experienced investigators continue to participate in days of action and 
proactive visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council 
Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.

Page 40



9

9.1

Internal Audit Performance Measures

The table below shows actual performance as at 30 September 2018 
against Internal Audit targets for the second quarter, including the actuals 
for 2017/18. 

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Year 

2017/18

Target 
Q2

2018/19

Actual 
Q2

2018/19
Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding 
overheads

£240 £260 £242

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor 
(days)

195 190 199

3. Percentage of audit plan 
completed (96% for full year)

96% 44% 45%

4. Percentage of draft audit 
reports issued within 14 days of 
completion of the audit

100% 98% 100%

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of 
recommendations accepted

100% 98% 100%

6. Results of client surveys - % of 
marks in the top two categories 
(i.e. very good & good)

100% 98% 100%

  
All performance indicators were either achieved or were ahead of target for 
the period.  

10  Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit

10.1 Internal Audit continues to undertake audit work for a number of 
organisations in accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby 
generating external income for the Authority. In 2018/19 to date this has 
included: 

 Audit of School Fund Accounts for 3 schools under Local Authority 
control which, up to 30 September 2018, which has generated income 
of £950.

Page 41



Costs and Budget Summary

11. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified during 
reviews and therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance and 
governance.

12.

Consultation

13. The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 
consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 42



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter two

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Public Health Trading 
Standards

The Trading Standards Team are responsible for the enforcement of a 
wide range of trade and consumer legislation which control the description, 
quality and safety of goods and services traded within the Borough. The 
audit sought to provide assurance that the Service is complying with its 
key statutory obligations.

Whilst the audit concluded that control systems and processes are 
generally sound, a number of recommendations were agreed by 
management in order to:

 Develop a single service plan to cover all Trading Standards 
activities and thereby develop a more cohesive approach for 
undertaking inspections:

 Increase the number of weights and measures inspections to 
provide greater levels of assurance;

 Align food standards visits with targets set by the Foods Standards 
Agency; and

 Enhance processes for identifying all business premises through 
liaison with the Revenues and Benefits Service.

Adequate M – 6,
L – 3 

P
age 43



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Economy Commercial 
Investment Fund

The Council has in its capital programme established a Commercial 
Investment Fund (CIF) of £30m. The CIF is an invest-to-save scheme in 
that income generated from investments is expected to cover any costs 
associated with funding and to contribute to the provision of Council 
services. The audit sought to provide assurance in relation to overall 
governance arrangements, management of risk, due diligence processes, 
approval and reporting protocols.

The audit concluded that an appropriate amount of due diligence has been 
undertaken as part of establishing the CIF to ensure it is based on sound 
legal foundations and a realistic financial model. Key actions agreed to 
further improve overall processes and controls include:

 Responding to recent changes in the Prudential  Framework of 
Capital Finance which are supported by the government and define 
relevant processes;

 Enhancing the Treasury Management Strategy to incorporate 
required aspects of an Investment Strategy and publish 
accordingly;

 Developing and publishing a Portfolio Management Strategy in 
relation to the ongoing management and monitoring of the 
Council’s investment portfolio; and

 Further enhancing governance and reporting protocols to facilitate 
oversight to confirm that the CIF objectives are being achieved on 
an ongoing basis.

Adequate H – 4,
M – 3 

P
age 44



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Economy Flood Risk 
Management

As a Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA), the Council has a range of 
statutory responsibilities which include delivering a local strategy to reduce 
risk and lead and coordinate flood risk management locally in line with 
national strategy. Flood risk management involves input from numerous 
Council services so coordination is key. Given flood events in recent years, 
the audit sought to provide assurance that statutory responsibilities were 
being met, the Councils Strategy for Flood Risk Management 2014-24 is 
being complied with, risks were being managed, local liaison is adequate 
and local flood defences and drainage systems are being maintained and 
improved where required.

In overall terms the audit provided substantial assurance that all key risks 
are being managed effectively and statutory requirements are being met. 
The medium priority recommendation related to the proposed installation 
of demountable flood barriers plus associated storage facilities and 
management have since confirmed that these should be in place before 
the end of 2018.

Substantial M – 1 

P
age 45



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Economy Section 106 
Planning 

Obligations

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allows a local 
planning authority to enter into a legally binding agreement with a 
landowner, or persons who intend to develop that land, in association with 
the granting of planning permission. These planning obligations are 
intended to address matters that are necessary to make a development 
acceptable in planning terms, e.g. sports and open space provision. The 
key audit objective was to ensure that such arrangements are 
appropriately approved, transparent and financially managed. 

The audit concluded that controls over the process are generally sound. 
However the high priority recommendation agreed with management was 
to establish a Section 106 Steering Group involving all key parties to 
enhance overall control, approval, transparency and reconciliation of 
allocated funds. This should also provide greater focus on ensuring 
monies are spent within an appropriate timeframe to mitigate the risk of 
potential clawback if agreed timescales are exceeded.

Adequate H – 1,
M – 1 

P
age 46



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Contracts 
Register

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules require all contracts to be 
included and published on the contracts register maintained by STAR 
Procurement, in line with the Local Government Transparency Code. 
Officers are responsible for ensuring STAR are provided with the 
information necessary to update the contracts register. The register assists 
in understanding the Council’s contractual and financial commitments, 
providing business intelligence, identifying off-contract spend, forward 
planning and prioritisation of procurements, improving efficiency and 
generating savings. This audit focused on providing assurance as to 
whether these objectives are being met.

Whilst the audit provided adequate assurance that process and control 
systems are generally sound, there are opportunities for improvement 
including the following:

 The development of a protocol through the STAR Board to confirm 
how the contract register should be used to achieve the stated 
objectives;

 The development of operational-level procurement plans within 
each Service to enhance future planning and the understanding of 
current commitments;

 The need for the Council to ensure relevant data is published on a 
timely basis to comply with the Transparency Code; and

 Processes are further developed to ensure the ongoing accuracy 
and completeness of the contracts register.

Adequate H – 3,
M – 5

P
age 47



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Treasury 
Management

The audit focused on providing assurance that treasury management 
policies, procedures and practices are in place and are being complied 
with, including appropriate segregation of duties, cash flow management 
and use of external advice where appropriate.

The audit concluded that there is a sound system of control in operation to 
manage risks effectively and no high or medium priority recommendations 
were made.

Substantial L – 1 

Neighbourhoods Highways Winter 
Service

The audit sought to provide assurance over the effectiveness of the 
management and provision of winter maintenance services facilitated 
through the contractor previously awarded the highways management 
contract.

The audit provided substantial assurance that core operational risks within 
the service were on the whole being effectively managed with only a small 
number of matters which merited improvement. The areas for which 
improvement to controls merited a higher priority were more aligned with 
the issues identified within a previous Internal Audit report relating to 
Highways Contract Management. These issues focused on more 
overarching and strategic processes and controls, and highlighted the 
need to have performance measures in place to evidence levels of service, 
contribute to demonstrating value for money and aid effective decision 
making. Internal Audit is currently liaising with management to confirm the 
status of the agreed recommendations within this report. 

Substantial H – 2,
M – 9,
L - 4 

P
age 48



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Various Grant 
Certifications

Certain grants available to RBC require periodic certification to confirm that 
the grants have been spent in accordance with grant terms and conditions. 
These certifications generally require sign off by the Head of Internal Audit 
together with either the Chief Executive or Chief Finance Officer. During 
quarter two, the following grant certifications were signed off in this way: 

 Local Growth fund Determination 2016/17;
 Cycle City Ambition Grant Certification 2017/18; and
 Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Pothole Action Fund) 

Specific Grant Determination 2017/18.
Internal Audit performed various independent checks to ensure that grant 
certifications could be signed off and no issues arose from this work.

Substantial None

P
age 49



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Services 
- Schools

4 Primary 
Schools

1 High School

These comprised reviews of the schools exposure to risk using the Ofsted 
document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of other service 
areas and the extent of schools’ implementation of previous 
recommendations. 
Meanwood Primary
Norden Community Primary
Parkfield Primary
Sacred Heart RC Primary
St Cuthberts RC High

Three high priority recommendations were made to ensure that:
 Staff involved in additional school related activities are not paid outside 

of the normal payroll process to ensure compliance with tax related 
legislation;

 Management and control of the disclosure and barring service checks 
is enhanced to ensure schools can demonstrate appropriate vetting has 
taken place; and

 Appropriate action is taken to address any potential budget deficit in a 
timely manner to ensure appropriate financial management.

A number of other actions were agreed to improve processes and controls 
including ensuring that:
 The Finance Policy remains up to date and reflective of all current 

processes;
 Processes for the recovery of arrears or write off of bad debts are 

enhanced;
 Processes to secure and record assets are robust;
 Purchase orders are raised at the point of requisition;
 Quotes are obtained to demonstrate best value in purchasing;

Substantial – 
2

Adequate - 3

H – 3,
M – 22,
L – 12 

P
age 50



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

 Information on free school meals is independently verified to confirm 
accuracy;

 Approval of the school budget is evidenced within Governing body 
minutes; and

 Overtime forms are appropriately approved. 

P
age 51



Appendix B
FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 4 DECEMBER 2018

Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Highways Contract 
Management A Neighbourhoods 15 31/07/2017 03/12/2018 13 2

Remaining actions should be 
completed by early 2019 – see 
paragraph 6.2

Residential Homes A Children's 5 28/02/2018    
Follow up in progress – 
awaiting response from 

management

Cyber Security A Neighbourhoods 11 31/03/2018 11/01/2018 5 6
Revised date of 31st October 

2018 for completion of the 
outstanding recommendation.

Financial Vetting Of 
Suppliers A Resources 4 30/06/2018    To be followed up in 2018/19 

by Trafford MBC Internal Audit
STAR Quality 
Management Systems A Resources 1 30/09/2018    To be followed up in 2018/19

Quality Assurance 
Framework A Adult 5 30/09/2018    To be followed up in 2018/19

ICT Access Controls A Neighbourhoods 5 31/10/2018    
Follow up in progress – 
awaiting response from 

management
Flood Risk Management S Economy 1 31/12/2018    To be followed up in 2018/19
Place Based working - 
Integrated Place Team S Economy 1 31/12/2018    To be followed up in 2018/19

Greater Manchester Road 
Activities Permit Scheme A Neighbourhoods 1 31/01/2019    To be followed up in 2018/19

Section 106 Planning 
Obligations A Economy 2 31/01/2019    To be followed up in 2018/19

Statutory Compliance In 
Property A Economy 9 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 2018/19

P
age 52



Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Council Website A Neighbourhoods 7 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 2018/19
Connected Council 
Programme A Neighbourhoods 5 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 2018/19

IT Disaster Recovery  L Neighbourhoods 5 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 2018/19
Commercial Investment 
Fund A Economy 7 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 2018/19

Trading Standards A Public Health 6 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20
Highways Winter Service S Neighbourhoods 11 31/05/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20
Review of Compliance with 
Contract Procedure Rules A Resources 3 31/05/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20

Contracts Register A Resources 8 30/06/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20

P
age 53



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 17th December 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Audit and Governance Committee Effectiveness - Self-Assessment

Executive Summary

1.1 This report presents a view of compliance of the Audit and Governance 
Committee against recognised best practice, as well as a view on the 
effectiveness of the Committee, as considered appropriate by the Chair of the 
Committee in consultation with the Head of Internal Audit and with input from 
Councillor Gartside.

1.2 The self-assessment and evaluation conclude that the Audit and Governance 
Committee has a high degree of performance against good practice principles 
set out by CIPFA. Moreover, in general terms, the Committee is effective in 
supporting and overseeing governance throughout the Authority.

1.3 The key actions arising were as follows:
 Opportunity exists to promote the work of the Committee to all officers 

via the intranet or other means which may be considered appropriate;
 Continue to review and challenge the role of the Committee and its 

interaction with other Committees to enhance its overall effectiveness;
 Given the recent updated guidance which promotes the idea of having 

at least one independent member on the Committee (although this is 
not mandatory), the Chair has suggested further formal consideration of 
this matter will be given by Committee members at the meeting on 17 
December 2018 with reference to a separate report to be presented by 
the Head of Internal Audit; and

 Membership of the Committee should be assessed against the core 
knowledge and skills framework set out within the guidance to 
determine if there are any specific training or development needs to 
ensure that the Committee remains effective in the future – this is now 
in progress.

Recommendation

2. Members give consideration to and approve the attached Self-Assessment of 
Compliance with Good Practice (Appendix 1) and Evaluation of Effectiveness 

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



of the Audit and Governance Committee (Appendix 2).  

Reason for Recommendation

3. In 2018, CIPFA issued guidance entitled Audit Committees: Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities and Police which draws on best practice from 
both local government and the wider public sector. This updates previous 
guidance issued in 2013. This guidance recommends that from time to time, 
the Committee should undertake a formal review of its effectiveness and 
compliance with best practice and provided checklists as a means to do this. 
The attachments therefore present the current view of the Committee, 
refreshing the previous view which was presented to Committee on 27 June 
2016.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

The self-assessment and evaluation conclude that the Audit and Governance 
Committee fulfils all of its core objectives which align with best practice. 
Moreover, in general terms, the Committee is effective in supporting and 
overseeing governance throughout the Authority.

The key actions arising were as follows:
 Opportunity exists to promote the work of the Committee to all officers 

via the intranet or other means which may be considered appropriate;
 Continue to review and challenge the role of the Committee and its 

interaction with other Committees to enhance its overall effectiveness;
 Given the recent updated guidance which promotes the idea of having 

at least one independent member on the Committee (although this is 
not mandatory), the Chair has suggested further formal consideration of 
this matter will be given by Committee members at the meeting on 17 
December 2018. Whilst it is recognised that there are two independent 
persons who are members of the Committee, they were originally 
recruited as part of the previous Standards Committee in accordance 
with the Localism Act 2011 and not necessarily with the skill sets, role 
or remit associated with an audit committee member; and

 Membership of the Committee should be assessed against the core 
knowledge and skills framework set out within the guidance to 
determine if there are any specific training or development needs to 
ensure that the Committee remains effective in the future. The strength 
of an audit committee often comes from the wide variety of knowledge, 
skills and experience that different members bring to the Committee 
and such an assessment helps to identify if there are any specific gaps.

Alternatives Considered

As this is the primary guidance supporting the role and responsibilities of an 
audit committee, no alternatives are considered appropriate.

Page 55



Costs and Budget Summary

5. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

The key risk arising is that the operation of the Audit and Governance 
committee does not align with best practice and does not therefore effectively 
monitor and support overall governance within the Authority. The checklist 
and evaluation provide a challenge against best practice standards to mitigate 
this risk.

6.

Consultation

7. The initial draft self-assessment and evaluation were prepared through 
consultation between the chair and the Head of Internal Audit, with some 
input from Councillor Gartside.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. CIPFA: Audit Committees: 
Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police 2018

Number One Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 56



Appendix 1

Audit and Governance Committee Self-assessment of 
Compliance with Good Practice

This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles set out in CIPFA’s 
Position Statement and this publication. Where an audit committee has a high degree of 
performance against the good practice principles, then it is an indicator that the committee is 
soundly based and has in place a knowledgeable membership. These are the essential factors in 
developing an effective audit committee.

A regular self-assessment can be used to support the planning of the audit committee work 
programme and training plans. It can also inform an annual report.

Good practice questions Yes Partly No Comments/Actions

Audit committee purpose and governance

1 Does the Authority have a dedicated audit 
committee? Y

9 members with membership 
aligned with the political 
balance of the Council. 2 
independent persons also 
appointed to respond to 
Standards related issues.

2 Does the audit committee report 
directly to Full Council? Y

Committee produces an 
Annual Report and reports to 
Full Council via the chair with 
the ability to raise any 
concerns. There is also a 
right of access to the 
Leadership Team.

3 Do the terms of reference clearly set 
out the purpose of the committee in 
accordance with CIPFA’s Position 
Statement?

Y
Terms of reference accords 
with CIPFA guidance

4 Is the role and purpose of the audit 
committee understood and accepted 
across the Authority?

Y
Set out in the Constitution – 
role and purpose understood 
by Members, Leadership, 
Assistant Directors and 
reporting officers.
Action: Opportunity exists 
to promote the work of the 
Committee to all officers via 
the intranet.

5 Does the audit committee provide 
support to the Authority in meeting 
the requirements of good 
governance?

Y
Through coverage of all the 
areas set out in the Terms of 
Reference.

Page 57



Good practice questions Yes Partly No Comments/Actions

6 Are the arrangements to hold the 
committee to account for its 
performance operating satisfactorily?

Y
Committee produces an 
Annual Report and reports 
periodically to Full Council. 
Provision at Full Council 
meetings for motions/ 
questions if required.

Functions of the committee

7 Do the committee’s terms of reference 
explicitly address all the core areas 
identified in CIPFA’s Position 
Statement?

 good governance Y

 assurance framework, including 
partnerships and collaboration 
arrangements

Y The assurance framework 
forms part of the annual 
Internal Audit opinion and 
includes consideration of all 
assurances sourced from 
external/ independent 
sources. Where appropriate 
or requested, the remit of 
Internal Audit is extended 
beyond the boundaries of the 
Council, e.g. health and social 
care integration, 
organisations funded in part 
by the Council etc.

 internal audit Y

 external audit Y

 financial reporting Y

 risk management Y

 value for money or best value Y This is covered explicitly 
through the work completed 
and assurance provided by 
external audit. Ensuring value 
for money also forms an 
inherent part of the Internal 
Audit approach.

 counter fraud and corruption Y

 supporting the ethical framework Y Matters concerning standards 
and codes of conduct form an 
inherent part of the 
Committee’s remit. Internal 
Audit also provide assurance 
on areas associated with the 
ethical framework as part of 
their annual Internal Audit 
Plans

Page 58



Good practice questions Yes Partly No Comments/ Actions

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to 
assess whether the committee is fulfilling its 
terms of reference and that adequate 
consideration has been given to all core 
areas?

Y
Annual report of the 
Committee sets out the work 
undertaken in accordance 
with the Terms of Reference.

Core areas from the CIPFA 
guidance considered as part 
of this assessment.

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider 
areas identified in CIPFA’s Position Statement 
and whether it would be appropriate for the 
committee to undertake them?

Y
The committee has assumed 
responsibility for some of 
these areas, including 
standards and ethics. 
Assurance on treasury 
management is provided 
through Internal audit 
coverage. Consideration is 
also given to governance and 
risk matters highlighted by 
other committees such as 
Overview and Scrutiny. 
Action: Continue to review 
and challenge the role of 
the Committee and its 
interaction with other 
Committees.

10 Where coverage of core areas has been 
found to be limited, are plans in place to 
address this?

N/A
Coverage of core areas is felt 
to be sufficient.

11 Has the committee maintained its advisory 
role by not taking on any decision-making 
powers that are not in line with its core 
purpose?

Y

Membership and support

12 Has an effective audit committee structure and 
composition of the committee been selected?
This should include:
 separation from the executive
 an appropriate mix of knowledge and 

skills among the membership
 a size of committee that is not unwieldy
 consideration has been given to the 

inclusion of at least one independent 
member (where it is not already a 
mandatory requirement)

Y

Y

Y

Y

P
Action: Whilst not 
mandatory, this issue has 
been discussed previously 
but no proposal has been 
put forward by Members to 
recruit an independent 
member. Given the recent 
updated Guidance, the 
Chair has suggested further 
formal consideration will be 
given by Committee 
members at the meeting on 
17 December 2018.

Page 59



Good practice questions Yes Partly No Comments/ Actions

13 Have independent members appointed to the 
committee been recruited in an open and 
transparent way and approved by the Full 
council or as appropriate for the organisation?

N/A See above

14 Does the chair of the committee have 
appropriate knowledge and skills? Y

Chair has a background and 
experience which supports 
his role on the Committee and 
has undertaken Member 
training and Audit Committee 
training.

15 Are arrangements in place to support 
the committee with briefings and 
training?

Y
Training programme has 
been provided to cover audit, 
governance, risk and financial 
accounts and will continue to 
be updated and refreshed. 
Other briefings covered 
include procurement and 
counter fraud activities. 
Members will also ask for 
training as required.

16 Has the membership of the committee been 
assessed against the core knowledge and skills 
framework and found to be satisfactory?

P
Action: In view of the 
significant changes in 
membership in the 2018/19 
municipal year, this 
assessment is being 
refreshed in 2018 to ensure 
it has been completed by all 
members by December 
2018.

17 Does the committee have good working relations 
with key people and organisations, including 
external audit, internal audit and the CFO?

Y

18 Is adequate secretariat and 
administrative support to the committee 
provided?

Y
Governance and Committee 
Services provide support.

              Effectiveness of the committee

19 Has the committee obtained feedback on its 
performance from those interacting with the 
committee or relying on its work?

N
No formal feedback on 
performance, however the 
Committee does get feedback 
from external audit. 

20 Are meetings effective with a good level 
of discussion and engagement from all 
the members?

Y

Page 60



Good practice questions Yes Partly No Comments/ Actions

21 Does the committee engage with a wide 
range of leaders and managers, including 
discussion of audit findings, risks and 
action plans with the responsible officers?

Y
A number of Directors and 
senior managers have 
attended recent Audit 
Committee meetings to 
present updates for Members 
and to be challenged on 
specific areas of interest or 
concern. This practice will 
continue.

22 Does the committee make 
recommendations for the improvement of 
governance, risk and control and are these 
acted on?

Y
Agreed actions and 
recommendations are always 
followed up at subsequent 
meetings to ensure actioned 
in a timely manner.

23 Has the committee evaluated whether and 
how it is adding value to the organisation?

Y As part of the annual report 
and the self-assessment 
process.

24 Does the committee have an action plan 
to improve any areas of weakness?

Y Actions have been detailed as 
part of the annual self-
assessment process.

25 Does the committee publish an annual 
report to account for its performance and 
explain its work?

Y The Chair’s Annual Report is 
presented to Full Council.

Page 61



                                                                                                                                                            Appendix 2

Evaluation of effectiveness of the Audit 
and Governance Committee

Assessment key

5 Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively 
supporting improvements across all aspects of this area. The improvements made are 
clearly identifiable.

4 Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively 
supporting improvement across some aspects of this area.

3 The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area. There is 
some evidence that demonstrates their impact but there are also significant gaps.

2 There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the impact of 
this support is limited.

1 No evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements in this area.

Areas where the 
audit committee 
can add value by 
supporting 
improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness

Self-evaluation, examples, 
areas of strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment: 
5 – 1
See key 
above

Promoting the 
principles of good 
governance
and their application 
to decision making

 Supporting the development 
of a local code of governance

 Providing robust review of 
the Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS) and the 
assurances underpinning 
it

 Working with key members to 
improve their understanding of 
the AGS and their contribution 
to it

 Supporting reviews/audits 
of governance 
arrangements

 Participating in self- 
assessments of 
governance 
arrangements

 Working with partner audit 
committees to review 
governance arrangements 
in partnerships

 Robust review of the 
draft AGS and review of 
the final version.

 Review of opinions to 
support the AGS from 
internal and external 
audit, including 
assurance framework.

 Review of reports from 
officer Governance 
Board which provide 
assurance of the 
governance 
arrangements in place in 
the Council.

 Review of periodic and 
annual risk management 
reports.

        5

Page 62



Areas where the 
audit committee 
can add value by 
supporting 
improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment: 5 – 
1
See key above

Contributing to 
the development 
of an effective 
control 
environment

 Actively  monitoring 
the implementation of
recommendations from auditors

 Encouraging ownership of 
the internal control 
framework by appropriate 
managers

 Raising  significant  concerns 
over controls with appropriate 
senior managers

 Progress reports from 
Internal Audit on a 
regular basis confirm 
implementation of 
recommendations and 
highlight high/ medium 
priority recommendations 
outstanding.

 Directors/ senior 
managers requested to 
attend Committee 
meetings to discuss 
issues/ concerns as 
required.

 Areas of interest or 
concern are raised by 
members either in 
committee or fed into the 
Internal Audit Annual 
Audit Plan for evaluation.

5

Supporting the 
establishment of 
arrangements for 
the governance of 
risk and for 
effective
arrangements to 
manage risks

 Reviewing risk 
management 
arrangements and their 
effectiveness, e.g. risk 
management 
benchmarking

 Monitoring improvements
 Holding risk owners to 

account for major/strategic 
risks

 Regular review of the 
Corporate Risk Register 
and approval of the Risk 
Management Strategy 
and associated policies.

 Regular updates 
provided by the Risk 
Manager on progress 
made in implementing 
the Risk Management 
strategy.

 Discussion and 
challenge of specific 
areas of risk within 
Committee meetings.

4

Page 63



Areas where the audit 
committee can add 
value by supporting 
improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and weakness

Overall assessment: 
5 – 1
See key above

Advising on the 
adequacy of the 
assurance framework  
and considering 
whether assurance is 
deployed efficiently 
and effectively

 Specifying its assurance 
needs, identifying gaps or 
overlaps in assurance

 Seeking to streamline 
assurance gathering and 
reporting

 Reviewing the effectiveness of 
assurance providers, e.g. 
Internal Audit, risk 
management, external audit

 Assurance Map included 
as part of the Internal 
Audit Annual Report 
monitored and used to 
support audit opinions 
and approval of AGS.

 Internal Audit annual 
Report includes 
evaluation of other 
external assurances.

 Regular reporting into 
Committee by Internal 
Audit, external audit and 
risk management.

 Reports received from 
officer Governance 
Board.

4

Supporting the 
quality of the internal 
audit activity, 
particularly by 
underpinning
its 
organisational 
independence

 Reviewing the Internal 
Audit charter and 
functional reporting 
arrangements

 Assessing the effectiveness of 
Internal Audit arrangements, 
providing constructive 
challenge and supporting 
improvements

 Actively supporting the 
quality assurance and 
improvement programme of 
internal audit

 Committee approves the 
Internal Audit Charter 
which includes structure, 
remit and reporting lines.

 Committee approves the 
peer review process for 
external evaluation of 
Internal Audit against 
current standards. This 
supports the self-
assessment reported to 
Committee via the 
Internal Audit Annual 
Report.

 Close liaison with 
internal Audit by the 
Chair and other 
Committee members 
throughout the year.

5

Page 64



Areas where the 
audit committee 
can add value by 
supporting 
improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment: 5 – 1
See key above

Aiding the achievement 
of the Authority’s goals 
and objectives through 
helping to ensure 
appropriate 
governance, risk, 
control and assurance  
arrangements

 Reviewing how the 
governance arrangements 
support the achievement of 
sustainable outcomes

 Reviewing major projects 
and programmes to ensure 
that governance and 
assurance arrangements are 
in place

 Reviewing the effectiveness 
of performance 
management arrangements

 Monitoring the outcomes 
from Internal Audit Plan 

 Assurance map reviewed 
annually through Internal 
audit Annual Report

 Assurance on 
sustainability monitored 
through work of external 
audit

 Governance and 
performance 
management of major 
projects evaluated 
through risk based 
Internal Audit Plan

4

Supporting the 
development of robust 
arrangements for 
ensuring value for 
money

 Ensuring that assurance on 
value for money arrangements 
is included in the assurances 
received by the audit 
committee

 Considering how performance 
in value for money is 
evaluated as part of the AGS

 External evaluation of 
value for money 
performed by external 
audit on an annual basis 
and outcomes reported 
to this Committee

 Value for money 
evaluation is an inherent 
part of the Internal Audit 
approach

 Compliance with 
Financial Regulations 
and Contract Procedure 
rules evaluated by 
Internal Audit.

3

Page 65



Areas where the 
audit committee 
can add value by 
supporting 
improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment: 5 – 1
See key above

Helping the Authority 
to implement the 
values of good 
governance, including  
effective arrangements 
for countering fraud 
and corruption risks

 Reviewing  arrangements 
against the standards set out  
in the Code of Practice on 
Managing the Risk of Fraud 
and Corruption (CIPFA, 2014)

 Reviewing fraud risks 
and the effectiveness of 
the organisation’s 
strategy to address 
those risks

 Assessing the 
effectiveness of ethical 
governance
arrangements for both staff 
and governors

 Updates on outcomes 
from counter fraud 
activity included in 
Internal Audit Quarterly 
Reports to committee.

 Annual Fraud Report 
includes summary of 
Council’s response to 
significant fraud risks 
and any actions arising.

 Internal Audit has 
responsibility for 
maintaining the anti-
Fraud and Corruption 
Policy

 Internal audit provide 
assurance on areas 
associated with the 
ethical framework as part 
of their annual Internal 
Audit Plan.

 Matters concerning 
standards and codes of 
conduct form an inherent 
part of the Committee’s 
remit.

4

Page 66

http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-documentation/code-of-practice-on-managing-the-risk-of-fraud-and-corruption


Areas where the 
audit committee 
can add value by 
supporting 
improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness

Self-evaluation, 
examples, areas of 
strength and 
weakness

Overall 
assessment: 5 – 1
See key above

Promoting effective 
public reporting to the 
Authority’s  stakeholders 
and local community 
and measures to 
improve transparency 
and accountability

 Improving how the Authority 
discharges its responsibilities 
for public reporting; for 
example, better targeting at 
the audience, plain English

 Reviewing whether 
decision making through 
partnership organisations 
remains transparent and 
publicly accessible and 
encourages greater 
transparency

 Publishing an annual 
report from the committee

 Committee encourages 
full compliance with 
Transparency Code 
and press releases 
relating to any fraud 
prosecutions.

 Committee reviews the 
Annual Governance 
Statement to ensure it 
reflects current levels of 
governance and any 
actions arising to 
improve.

 Chair’s Annual Report 
presented to Full 
Council.

 Whistleblowing Policy 
activity promoted and 
included on Council’s 
website

4

Page 67



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 17th December 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Proposal to Recruit an Independent Member on Audit and 
Governance Committee

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

The primary considerations in relation to audit committee membership should 
be maximising the committee’s knowledge base and skills as a collective 
body, being able to demonstrate objectivity and independence, and having a 
membership that will work together. Elected members of local authorities bring 
knowledge of the organisation, its objectives and policies to the audit 
committee. Members who are also involved in scrutiny or standards offer 
additional knowledge of activity, risks and challenges affecting those areas.

However, good practice shows that co-option of independent members is 
beneficial to the audit committee. It is a requirement for police audit 
committees, English combined authorities and for local authorities in Wales, 
and it is usual practice for non-executives to be committee members in health 
and central government audit committees. It is also very common practice to 
have independent audit committee members within the private sector. The 
injection of an external view can often bring a new approach to committee 
discussions. Authorities that have chosen to recruit independent members 
have done so for a number of reasons:

 To bring additional knowledge, experience and expertise to the 
committee, particularly in areas such as governance, finance, risk 
management and/or audit;

 To reinforce the political neutrality and independence of the committee; 
and

 To maintain continuity of committee membership where membership is 
affected by the electoral cycle.

Recommendation

2. Members to consider a proposal to appoint an independent member, in 
addition to those independent members who were recruited under the terms of 
the Localism Act 2011, to the Audit and Governance Committee and to make 
a recommendation to Council to approve an amendment to the existing 

Page 68

Agenda Item 10



Constitution to accommodate this.

Reason for Recommendation

3. To comply with best practice set out within guidance issued by CIPFA which 
endorses the approach of mandating the inclusion of a lay or independent 
member and recommends that those authorities, for whom it is not a 
requirement, actively explore the appointment of an independent member to 
the committee.

Key Points for Consideration

          Background

4.1

4.2

4.3

In 2018 CIPFA issued guidance entitled Audit Committees: Practical Guidance 
for Local Authorities and Police which draws on best practice from both local 
government and the wider public sector. This updates previous guidance 
issued in 2013. This Guidance highlights that the composition of an audit 
committee is a key factor in achieving the characteristics of a good audit 
committee. This is a matter considered in more depth within the report Audit 
and Governance Committee Effectiveness Self–Assessment presented to 
Members on 17 December 2018.

Size of audit committee

In terms of the size of an audit committee, in the local authority sector where 
membership of the committee is drawn from elected representatives, the 
depth of knowledge and experience that is desirable may be harder to achieve 
with a small number. However there is always a risk that creating a large 
committee will mean that it is harder to create the necessary focus. A 2016 
survey by CIPFA confirmed that there is no consistency in the local 
government sector on the size of such a committee. At that time 47% of audit 
committees had between six and eight members with 50% having more than 
eight members. The nine members in Rochdale therefore aligns closely with 
common practice.

Consideration of independent members

As part of the Guidance, CIPFA endorses the approach of mandating the 
inclusion of a lay or independent member and recommends that those 
authorities, for whom it is not a requirement, actively explore the appointment 
of an independent member to the committee. Whilst it is recognised that there 
are two independent persons who are members of the Committee, they were 
originally recruited in accordance with the Localism Act 2011 to support the 
old Standards Committee (which has since been merged into the Audit and 
Governance Committee) and not necessarily with the skill sets, role or remit 
associated with an audit committee member. Therefore the Council currently 
does not align with recommended best practice in terms of having an 
independent member for audit committee purposes. The benefits of such an 
appointment are set out in paragraphs 1.1 and 1.2 above.

Page 69



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

In order to present a balanced view it should also be recognised that there are 
some potential pitfalls to the use of independent members which should be 
born in mind:

 Over-reliance on the independent member(s) by other committee 
members can lead to a lack of engagement across the full committee;

 Lack of organisational knowledge or context among the independent 
member(s) when considering risk registers or audit reports; and

 Effort is required from both independent members and officers to 
establish an effective working relationship and establish appropriate 
protocols for briefings, training and access to information.

Voting of independent members

Local authorities must have regard to Section 13 of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 which relates to the voting rights of non-elected committee 
members. Where the audit committee is operating in an advisory capacity 
under the Local Government Act 1972, making recommendations rather than 
policy, then all members of the Committee should be able to vote on that 
recommendation. For those matters on which the Council delegates decisions 
to the Committee, such as the adoption of the Annual Financial Accounts, the 
independent member would not be able to vote on those matters for decision. 
The minutes of each meeting would make clear in what capacity the 
Committee is voting.

Recruitment process

As part of the recruitment process for an independent member, the job 
description would be drawn up and agreed before commencing the process. 
This is a process that could be undertaken by a sub-group of the Committee 
involving both Members and officers. The requirement for relevant knowledge 
or expertise should be clearly determined and should include areas such as 
governance, finance, risk management and/or audit.

Vacancies would be publicly advertised, as is good practice for any public 
appointment. Candidates should be able to demonstrate their political 
independence and their suitability would be checked. It is noted that only 
independent members for combined authorities have to satisfy specific 
definitions of their independence. Appropriate enquiries would have to be 
made as part of the recruitment process to ensure that any applicants satisfy 
the requirements, and continuation of compliance would have to be monitored 
during the term of appointment.

Independent members’ appointments should be for a fixed term and be 
formally approved by Council. Provision should be made for early termination 
and extension to avoid lack of clarity in the future. While operating as a 
member of the Audit and Governance Committee, the independent member 
would follow the same code of conduct as elected members and a register of 
interests should be maintained.

Page 70



4.9

4.10

4.11

The primary considerations in relation to audit committee membership should 
be maximising the committee’s knowledge base and skills as a collective 
body, and being able to demonstrate objectivity and independence. 

Process and timescales

If Members agree to recommend to Council that an independent member 
should be recruited to form an additional part of the Audit and Governance 
Committee, the key steps and timescales for the process could run as follows:

 Agree on Member/ officer group to develop recruitment process;
 Develop recruitment process including job specification, advert and 

interview process/ questions;
 Write a proposal to submit to Council on 14 February 2019 

recommending an extension of the membership of the Audit and 
Governance Committee of one (or more) members with a governance, 
finance, risk management and/or audit background;

 Initiate recruitment process setting appropriate timescales;
 Complete recruitment process with a view to submitting details of the 

preferred candidate(s) to Council on 22 May 2019; and
 Once the full complement of the Committee has been confirmed by 

Council for the 2019/20 municipal year, including the independent 
member(s), an appropriate induction and training programme will be 
developed and implemented.

Alternatives Considered

The alternative is to leave the membership of the Committee as it is currently 
and not benefit from the advantages set out within paragraph 1.2.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The cost of this proposal is a matter for Members to consider if it accepted and 
may include recompense for expenses incurred by an independent member.

Risk and Policy Implications

This proposal seeks to address the risk that the effectiveness of the Audit 
and Governance Committee may not be optimised through bringing in 
additional skills, knowledge and expertise that add value to the experience 
already provided by existing members of the Committee. 

6.

Consultation

7. Consultation so far has taken place with the Chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee, Director of Resources, Assistant Director (Legal, 
Governance & Workforce)/Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer and 
is now a matter for consideration by the wider membership of the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Page 71



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. CIPFA: Audit Committees: 
Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police 2018

Number One Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 72



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 17 December 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Martin Nixon
Public/Private Document Public

Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2018/19

Executive Summary

1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 
during Quarter 2 of the 2018/19 year.

Results of the 2017/18 Risk Management self-assessments show that 
Services achieved an overall compliance percentage of 72.38%. Assistance 
will be provided by the Risk Manager to complete action points arising from 
the process. Work is ongoing to complete risk registers for integrated health 
and social care transformation projects, with completion planned for the end of 
the 2018 calendar year.

The Insurance Team achieved a claims cost mitigation figure of £335,253 for 
the quarter.

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of Members to confirm the level of assurance 
provided through the management of risk and insurance services.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and oversight of governance, to scrutinise Risk 
Management and Insurance Team coverage during the 2018/19 year for all 
Council Services.

Key Points for Consideration

4. Corporate Risk Register
The Leadership Team continue to proactively manage risks listed under the 
Corporate risk register. The Corporate risk register is attached as Appendix 1.

Page 73

Agenda Item 11



5.

5.1

5.2

Service Risk Management

2017/18 Risk Management Self-Assessment Results

Risk champions from all Council Services have been requested to complete 
self-assessments to provide assurance that risk management processes are 
embedded within their respective teams. Each Service is assessed on factors 
such as the suitability of risks identified on the register, the effectiveness of risk 
control implementation, and the quality of risk review activity.

The Risk Manager received self-assessment responses from 21 Service teams 
providing a wide analysis of risk across the Council structure. The absence of 
operational risk registers under Neighbourhood Services or the integrated 
health and social care transformation programme prevented these Service 
areas from participating in the exercise.

After collating all results a total percentage of assessment criteria met across 
the Service teams was calculated at 72.38%. This result is lower than the 
76.00% outcome for 2015/16, and can be partly explained by the application of 
increased standards when evaluating the extent of risk coverage, and the 
disruptive effect of the high turnover of risk champions during the year.

Common issues included gaps in coverage requiring the addition of new risks 
and mitigation actions. There were also instances where risks had not been 
identified correctly – for example the incorrect use of a team objective or 
project title, instead of pinpointing the actual ‘risk’ that could lead to the failure 
of that objective. The Risk Manager is currently providing guidance to risk 
champions to assist in the completion of all action points arising from self-
assessments by 31st December 2018.

Integrated Care Risk Management

An exercise was undertaken in September/October by the project 
management team (PMO) of the Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) to develop comprehensive risk registers for each 
of the 39 intervention projects. Work to complete registers is still ongoing in 
some interventions and the PMO Programme Manager has confirmed a plan to 
address all gaps in data by December month-end.

A high-level update on operational risks within the Transformation Highlight 
report to the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on 27th November 2018 
confirmed the following key risks –

i) Clinical Pharmacists (Primary Care): Rochdale has been unable to recruit 
to the full complement of clinical pharmacist posts and currently has 1.8 
locum pharmacists in place. However prescribing data at the end of July 
indicates that the intervention is broadly on track to deliver £1.1m of the 
£1.2m transformation benefits planned. Initial discussion in relation to 
fulfilling the above positions via secondment opportunities is taking place. 

ii) Planned Care: The Planned Care theme has a deflection value of £10m 

Page 74



5.3

5.4

5.5

over 4 years with £2.5m deliverable in 2018/19. Urgent work is ongoing to 
develop a detailed Planned Care work programme to deliver transformation 
benefits and support the savings programme.

iii) Transformation performance indicator (TPI) / outcomes tracking: The 
majority of themes reference ability to track and monitor activity and 
performance against defined TPI’s as a risk to the intervention delivery. 
Pennine Acute and Pennine Care have met and agreed to contribute to the 
data submission process, enabling more accurate tracking of patient 
journeys and links to cost deflections.

Re-Scoring of Service Risks

All risks recorded under Service risk registers are in the process of being re-
scored using the new 5x5 risk-scoring matrix agreed for all Council and 
Heywood Middleton Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) risks.

It was agreed by the Leadership Team in March 2018 that the use of a single 
system would avoid the potential misunderstanding that a variety of scoring 
methods applied to different risk registers would cause. The matrix selected 
aligns best with the risk appetites of all of the services involved.

15 out of 24 Service risk registers had been re-scored to date, and the 
remaining risk registers are planned to be updated by the end of the calendar 
year.

Implementation of Pentana Risk Software

The Risk Manager is working as part of the Pentana Implementation Group, 
alongside colleagues in the Corporate Policy Performance and Improvement 
team, ICT Services team and the HMR CCG. The new Pentana system was 
selected following a review of alternative software products for the monitoring 
of performance and risk outcomes across the Council and CCG. 

A timetable of user training, system configuration, consultation with Council 
Services, testing and data migration will start during Q3. The new Pentana 
software is scheduled to be released to Service risk owners by the start of the 
2019/20 financial year. Once implemented, the system will realise time savings 
due to the intuitive design of the risk module, increased flexibility in report 
writing, and better ‘cloud-based’ coordination of shared Council/CCG 
objectives.

Risk Management Results

The table in Appendix 2 shows the chart of RAG risk scores by Directorate 
from the Risk Management section of the Leadership dashboard for Quarter 2 
2018/19.

It can be seen from the chart that there are no Red risks to report following 
reviews of all risk registers. Variations in RAG classifications between 
Directorates should not be viewed purely as a reflection of the effectiveness of 

Page 75



6

6.1

risk control activity. Risk scoring is also influenced by the severity of risks 
associated with the different services and their capacity to mitigate.

This results chart includes comparison against the previous quarter to illustrate 
movement in scores over time.

Insurance Team

Performance
A summary of the work completed by the Insurance Team from April 2018 to 
June 2018 is set out below.

The team received a total of 116 new claims notifications during quarter 2. This 
figure was significantly lower than the peak of 196 notifications received during 
the winter seasonal increase in Q1.

Data currently available confirms that a total of 146 claims were closed by the 
team during quarter 2. However it should be noted that we are awaiting 
confirmation of the number of claims closed during September 2018 and 
therefore the actual total will rise when this figure is known. Closed claims will 
largely not be the same incidents as the newly notified claims referred to 
above. The claims handling process can run over a period of months or years, 
and therefore the team are working on a combination of new and existing 
cases.

The claims cost mitigation figures displayed in the table below are calculated
by subtracting the final settled amounts for closed claims against the highest
reserve amounts for the same losses during the claims handling process.
These statistics are a useful measure of the level of challenge put forward by
the Insurance Team through their investigations, liaison with the relevant
Services, and joint-effort with solicitors to defend against legal proceedings

Claims Cost Mitigation Table for 2018/19 Q2

Month Claims Closed Cost 
Mitigation

July 55 £175,121.46

August 50 £86,147.36

September 48 £73,984.32

Total 153 £335,253.14

The table shows that the Insurance Team achieved a total cost mitigation of 
£335,253.14 on settled claims costs during Q2. Please note that the cost 
mitigation figure for September is incomplete because we are still awaiting 
data from one previous insurer. Therefore the total for the quarter is likely to 
increase when this data is available.

The largest saving for an individual claim was the repudiation of a Public 
Liability claim involving personal injury to a third party cleaner. Investigations 

Page 76



6.2

7

determined that the cleaning service had not been commissioned by the 
Council and therefore the claim was repudiated with no compensation paid. 

Service Training Plan

The Insurance Team have a role to play in educating Council officers to both 
report incidents to the team in a manner that assists our investigations and any 
potential defence, and also to mitigate their insurable risks effectively. 
Gallagher Bassett offer accident investigation and risk health check sessions 
as part of their contracted claims handling service. 

A programme has been prepared of training to be delivered during Q3/Q4 of 
2018/19 as follows - 

November/December 2018
 ‘Motor Glovebox form’ training (for all Environmental Management - Waste 

officers) – The motor glovebox form is the standard notification form which 
provides essential incident information to claims investigators.

March 2019
 Accident investigation Training (Environmental Management) 
 Accident investigation Training (Schools) – 3 sessions
 Accident investigation Training (Council managers) 
 Risk Management training (Events team)
 Risk Management Health Check (Highways)
 Employers Liability Risk Management Health Check

Priorities for the Next Quarter

 Comprehensive risk registers for all health and social care Intervention 
projects to be completed.  

 Risk Management self-assessment action points to be completed by 
Service teams.

Costs and Budget Summary

8. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council will 
be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk Management reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. 

9.

Page 77



Consultation

10. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 
agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 78



Rochdale Risk Report Appendix 1 - 03 December 2018

Wider Leadership Team - Corporate Risk Register Risk Summary              

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious 
service and financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

David Wilcock David Wilcock Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

01 Oct 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission etc.)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data 
control requirements is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 06 Jul 18

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance 
issues   

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit   David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and 
outcome monitoring is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

P
age 79



CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild 
the infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 4 3 12

31 Mar 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and 
resilience

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed annually, communicated and understood    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific 
purposes   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident 
officers

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct 
exercises   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
annually   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0003 - Budget reductions required do not leave enough budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve balanced budget in 2018/19 and 2019/20 leading to a failure 
in legal duty (Strategic) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 Oct 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR3005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR3003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR3001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR3002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR3004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

P
age 80



 *    CRR3007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR3009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (offices and Members 
working together)   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR3010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR3008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

 *    CRR3006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 24 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

01 Oct 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR4005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR4002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR4004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR4007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR4009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (officers and Members 
working together)   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR4006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

P
age 81



CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ 
Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Neil Thornton Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

01 Oct 18

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood   Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-
learning   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the Central Health 
and Safety Committee   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted 
and addressed   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Steve Rumbelow Steve Rumbelow Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

01 Oct 18

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief Executives)   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority with other 
Council Leaders and Interim Mayor   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with CA/AGMA/Devolution 
issues as appropriate   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Oct 18

P
age 82



CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 4 3 12

31 Mar 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and 
intelligence sharing eg. Active citizens and multi-faith forums.

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 18

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with Greater Manchester authorities to monitor and mitigate 
risks    

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 18

 *    CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 18

 *    CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 18

 *    The partnership Consequence Management Group (CMG) exists to provide early 
identification and intervention on community tensions and develop positive community 
cohesion and diversionary activities to mitigate risks of escalation in tension. The CMG to 
inform and take direction from RBC and Partners command structure.

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 18

 *    CRR7002 Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected Members and Community 
Representatives   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Gail Hopper Gail Hopper Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

31 Jan 19

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 03 Sep 18

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust challenge   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

 *    CRR8011 Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in 
schools

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 19

P
age 83



 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 19

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sally McIvor Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

15 Aug 18

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge   Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 18

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge    Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 18

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)   Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self assessment of practice 
standards applied across the service   

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations 
regarding safeguarding practice are clearly defined and communicated  

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

P
age 84



CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Searle John Searle Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 Jan 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated   Peter Gregory Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jan 19

 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news   Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Feb 19

 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Feb 19

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently   Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

P
age 85



Page 86



Document is Restricted

Page 87

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 89

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 External Audit Progress Report 2018
	7 External Audit Strategy Memorandum 2018-2019
	8 Internal Audit Quarter 2 Report 2018/19
	9 Audit and Governance Committee Effectiveness - Self-Assessment
	Append. 1 for Audit and Governance Committee Effectiveness - Self-Assessment
	Append. 2 for Audit and Governance Committee Effectiveness - Self-Assessment

	10 Proposal to Recruit an Independent Member on Audit and Governance Committee
	11 RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q2 2018/19
	Agenda Item 11 - Appendix 1 Corporate Risk Report
	Agenda Item 11 - Appendix 2 Q2 RAG Scoring by Directorate

	13 Back O'th Moss Community Centre
	Append. 1 for Back O'th Moss Community Centre


